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t is perhaps difficult, at this distance, to appreciate just how novel the aerop ane was when 
the Royal Flying Corps (RFC) was formed on 13 May 1912. And yet, within a little over six 
years, it would form the basis for the world's first independent air force; and the world 's 
largest with some 23,000 aircraft and 300,000 personnel. Many of those attributes now 
associated with air power were first demonstrated by the RFC, even before the war started, 
in a series of pionee • • article, I shall be concentrating on 
thelogistic organi , io particular, the support of deployed 
operations in F 

From its inceptio i@ direct support of the Navy and the 
Army. Not only w of the RFC tailoredlor deployed operations 
alongside the Ex an squadron system was specifically chosen to 
provide for fie e field. Each squadron - comprising three flights of 
four. aeroplan dquarters fli ht - was to be a homogeneous unit, with its own field repair, 
stores and transport services, and as regards cooking, supplies and so on. The 
individual flights were also sel be detached for short periods. This organisation 
survived the test of two wort gnisable today. 1 
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The early aeroplanes were delicate, fragile and unreliable. Their integrity deteriorated rapidly when 
exposed to the elements such that hangarage was essential to provide protection for both 
machines and mechanics. The technologies involved were extremely high for the time, demanding 
skills and equipment that were not readily available. Engine lives were short, requiring thorough 
overhaul after a comparatively brief period. Effective support was made all the more difficult by the 
proliferation of aircraft and engine types and the lack of standard components. To enable the 
squadrons to function effectively in the field the logistic organisation had to be mobile and self­
contained, although it was also recognised that, even with these arrangements, only a proportion of 
aircraft would be available for operations.2 

The key was motor transport - itself a fledgling technology. By the time of the Military Wing's 
famous Concentration Camp at Netheravon in June 1914, each squadron had a wartime 
establishment of 26 lorries and tenders, together with 6 motorcycles and trailers.3 The need for 
these vehicles had been clearly demonstrated in successive exercises; but in peacetime affordability 
was the main issue.• A novel scheme was therefore introduced, at the behest of the Treasury, under 
which up to half of the lorries were provided by subsidy. This operated on the basis of a grant (£50 
towards purchase and £20 per annum for maintenance to agreed standards) paid to participating 
firms with the understanding that, in an emergency, the Army would purchase the vehicle for full-



time use. When war was declared there were over 1 ,000 vehicles registered under the scheme, 
many of which were destined for the RFC and subsequently appeared in France still sporting their 
commercial colours; including No 5 Sqn's brilliant scarlet lorry, previously operated by Maple's 
store, advertising 'HP' Sauce - The World's Appetiser. Not surprisingly, such incongruous sights 
fostered the belief that the RFC was woefully unprepared for war. In fact, it was evidence of an 
innovative and pragmatic solution to that perennial problem - matching resources to needs.5 



Even before the war, it was recognised that squadrons could not support themselves for more than 
a limited period in the field and that a facility was required - close to the Army's operations -
capable of undertaking a greater depth of repair and holding a wide range of spares and 
equipment. These needs were met by a Line of Communications Workshop which became known 
as the Flying Depot, and later the Aircraft Park, based at Farnborough and comprising separate 
stores and workshop sections capable of packing up and moving in 24 hours. On the outbreak of 
war, the Aircraft Park deployed to France to support the squadrons in the field, arriving at Boulogne 
on 18 August 1914.6 The Official History records that, on disembarkation, the port landing officer 
sent an urgent wire to General Headquarters: 

An unnumbered unit without aeroplanes which calls itself an Aircraft Park has arrived. What 
are we to do with it? 

Despite this initial hiccup, the Aircraft Park proved itself invaluable in sustaining the four deployed 
RFC squadrons. It was, in effect, their travelling base and as such was constantly on the move. 
Eventually, at the end of October, after five changes in location, the Aircraft Park found itself at 
St Omer where it would remain for much of the war. 7 
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By the end of 1914, the system for the supply 
of materiel to the squadrons in the field was 
as depicted as shown at (Figure 1). Two 
aspects are worthy of note. First, a 
considerable quantity of materiel was 
purchased directly in France and delivered to 
the Aircraft Park for formal acceptance and 
issue. This included aircraft as well as 
engines, wireless equipment and a wide range 
of aeronautical stores. Such was the urgency 
of the RFC's needs that, in the first 6 months 
of the war, 100 complete aircraft were 
purchased from French manufacturers, part of 
a total of 1 ,500 airframes of various types 
purchased in France during the course of the 
war. The employment of these aircraft and 
associated equipment, whilst of significant 
operational benefit, considerably complicated 
the Aircraft Park's logistic efforts, particularly 
the interchangeability (or lack of it) between 
British and French-sourced components.8 

The second point I would like to make, is that all other stores for the Aircraft Park were issued by 
the Ordnance Aeronautical Stores Department (OASD), part of the Army Ordnance Department, 
based at Farnborough. Their supplies were obtained either by direct purchase or from the Royal 
Aircraft Factory.9 The increasing range and quantities of material that had to be handled led to the 

Even before the war, it was recognised that squadrons 
could not support themselves for more than a limited 
period in the field 



As the war 
setting up of a dedicated stores depot in October 1914 
to hold aircraft, engines, pyrotechnics and all stores 
special to the RFC. Almost immediately, the buildings at 
Farnborough proved inadequate to the task and 
additional stores were established at Greenwich and 
Didcot; the first elements in a stores distribution system 
that would ultimately comprise 7 main depots and 10 
distributing parks in the United Kingdom alone. I should 
add that the situation at Farnborough was not made any 
easier by the requirement that all aircraft purchased for 
the RFC had to be flown there, or delivered crated and 
then erected , for inspection and flight testing by the 
Aeronautical Inspection Department (AID). This potential 
bottleneck remained until March 1915 when regional 
delivery centres were opened.10 
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As the war grew in scale and intensity, ever greater 
human and materiel resources were needed to sustain the RFC in the field. The growth in the 
number of frontl ine squadrons, the increasing complexity of aircraft and their supporting equipment 
and the rapid rise in wastage through accidents or combat losses, placed the existing logistic 
organisation under considerable strain. The Aircraft Park itself resembled, in the words of its 
commander, a gigantic factory and emporium, repairing everything from aircraft to wireless 
equipment and vehicles. The range and quantity of spares to be handled created immense 
difficult ies. The stores section alone was responsible for requisitions ranging from complete aircraft 
to horserakes and lawnmowers for keeping aerodromes trim. As a result, by July 1915, the Aircraft 
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Park had become just too unwieldy to satisfy the demands placed 
upon it and thus a second park was established at Candas to cater 
for those squadrons working directly for the newly formed Third 
Army. 11 Both parks were suppl ied by rai l from separate port depots, 
based respectively at Boulogne and Rouen, which received all the 
RFC's stores from England. In due course, the Rounen base became 
a huge engineering complex that included the RFC's Engine Repair 
Shops at Pont de l'Arche which, by the summer of 1917, would 
comprise over 1,700 personnel employed in the overhaul and repair of 
engines from every squadron on the Western Front. 12 Repairs were 
also carried out by civi lian contractors, but the bulk of arisings were 
placed in Service repair shops in order to avoid persistent labour and 
production problems in the United Kingdom. '3 

Even with these changes, it was evident that unless the parks were 
relieved of some of their heavy repair work and the vast range of stores 
that they were now required to hold, there was no possibility they 
could sustain a mobile role . The elegant solution was to create new 
aircraft parks for each RFC brigade and to convert the original air parks 
into fixed supply and repair depots. The individual air parks were kept 
as small as possible, comprising some 150 personnel organised into 
separate repair, stores and transport sections, and based in the rear of 
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